
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
To: Councillors Galvin (Chair), Aspden, Pierce (Vice-Chair), 

Scott, Simpson-Laing, Taylor, R Watson and Waudby 
 

Date: Monday, 23 February 2009 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 

At this point in the meeting, Members will be invited to declare any 
personal or prejudicial interests they may have in the business on 
the agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 
December 2008. 
 

3. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. Anyone who 
wishes to register or requires further information is requested to 
contact the Democracy Officer on the contact details listed at the 
foot of this agenda. The deadline for registering is Friday 20 
February 2009 at 5 pm. 
 



 

4. Update on the Implementation of Recommendations of 
Previous Scrutiny Reviews  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

This report provides Members with update information on the 
implementation of recommendations made as a result of previously 
completed scrutiny reviews on Recycling and Reuse and City 
Centre Retailing. 
 

5. Update on the Work of Health Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 13 - 
18) 
 

This report presents a summary of the work undertaken by Health 
Scrutiny Committee since November 2008. 
 

6. Scrutiny Annual Report  (Pages 19 - 36) 
 

This report presents the annual scrutiny report for scrutiny services 
detailing all of the reviews completed between May 2006 and 
December 2008. 
 

7. Protocol for Joint Scrutiny Reviews  (Pages 37 - 44) 
 

This report presents Members with a revised protocol to enable 
York to host joint scrutiny reviews should the need arise. A draft of 
the protocol is attached at Annex A to the report. 
 

8. Any other business which the Chair decides is urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972   
 

Democracy Officer:  
 Name: Jayne Carr 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552030 

• E-mail – jayne.carr@york.gov.uk  
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
Contact details are set out above.  



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

DATE 17 DECEMBER 2008 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS GALVIN (CHAIR), ASPDEN, 
FRASER (AS SUBSTITUTE FOR SCOTT), PIERCE 
(VICE-CHAIR), SIMPSON-LAING, TAYLOR, 
R WATSON AND I WAUDBY 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLOR SCOTT 

PART A - MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda.  

Councillor Fraser declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda 
item 4 (Final Report of the Health Scrutiny Committee – Dementia Review) 
as a member of the retired section of Unison. 

Councillor Pierce declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda 
item 4 (Final Report of the Health Scrutiny Committee – Dementia Review) 
as a member of the retired section of Unison and as his wife was a 
consultant psycho-geriatrician, although not with York Healthcare Trust.  

27. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny 
Management Committee held on 17 November 2008 
be signed as a correct record. 

28. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 

29. FINAL REPORT OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –

DEMENTIA REVIEW  

Members received a report which presented the final report from the 
Health Scrutiny Committee regarding their Dementia Review. 

Members had the option to support all, some or none of the 
recommendations from the review, as detailed in paragraph 7 of the report, 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



and to provide their comments prior to the report being considered by the 
Executive. 

The Chair of the Health Scrutiny Committee outlined the findings and 
recommendations from the review, and also recorded his thanks to the 
Scrutiny Officer and Democracy Officer for their work. 

Members made the following comments on the final report: 

• Welcomed the clarity of the report. 

• Noted the large numbers of patients with dementia that had not been 
diagnosed and observed that some of the recommendations addressed 
but did not completely resolve this. 

• Queried whether there was an on call liaison service at consultant level 
operating from Bootham Park Hospital and noted that the management 
of Bootham Park by the Primary Care Trust did not necessarily aid the 
integration of services. 

• Expressed the view that some of the patient experiences detailed made 
for depressing reading and that the issues they raised needed to be 
flagged up with all interested parties. 

• Recognised that there was lots of good work going on and significant 
progress had been made in recent years, despite the lack of support for 
staff, and that anecdotal evidence always tended to focus on problems. 

• Expressed concern that carers could not get the information they needed 
because of patient confidentiality. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the contents of the final report and its 
annexes be noted, accepted and forwarded to 
the Executive;1

(ii) That thanks be recorded to all those who had 
participated in the review; 

(iii) That copies of the report be sent to all 
interested parties, including service providers, 
consultees, the Secretary of State and the Chief 
Executive of the NHS, following its 
consideration by the Executive,2 and a press 
release be issued publicising the work.3

REASON:  To inform the Executive’s consideration of the final 
report. 

Action Required  
1 - To schedule the report on the Forward Plan for 
consideration by the Executive;  
2 - To include circulation of the report to interested parties in 
the appropriate workplan;  
3 - To arrange with the Press Office for a press release to be 
issued at the appropriate time.   

GR  

GR  

GR  

Page 4



30. SCRUTINY REVIEW SUPPORT BUDGET  

Members received a report which summarised the position to date on 
expenditure against the budget available specifically for supporting scrutiny 
reviews in 2008/9 and sought their views on the available budget for 
2009/10, with a view to making a recommendation to Council as part of the 
budget setting process.

Members had the constitutional right to consider what recommendation 
they wished to make to Council in relation to the allocation of budget for 
supporting scrutiny reviews in 2009/10.  Members also had the option to 
review the sum allocated for spend on each agreed review.  It was 
reported that this amount was currently £250 and suggested that Members 
may wish to consider revising the sum initially awarded for reviews, by 
increasing it to £500. 

Members highlighted the importance of increasing the budget for reviews, 
in relation to the ability to draw on external expertise, to hold events at 
outside venues and to effectively take on the expanding scrutiny role in 
relation to partnership organisations.  The Chair of the Education Scrutiny 
Committee highlighted that additional funding was needed for that 
Committee’s current review for the production of an additional flyer and 
hire of the Mansion House for an event. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the report and the current budget position 
be noted;

(ii) That it be agreed that the amount initially 
allocated for research supporting agreed 
reviews be increased to £500 per review for the 
remainder of the current financial year;1

 (iii) That the amount initially allocated for research 
supporting agreed reviews in 2009/10 be 
considered after the working group considering 
the new scrutiny structure has reported. 

REASON: To enable a robust scrutiny review support budget to 
be set for the 2009/10 financial year. 

Action Required  
1- To update the ledger and notify appropriate parties of the 
change to the budget.   

GR  

PART B - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL 

31. SCRUTINY REVIEW SUPPORT BUDGET  

Members received a report which summarised the position to date on 
expenditure against the budget available specifically for supporting scrutiny 
reviews in 2008/9 and sought their views on the available budget for 

Page 5



2009/10, with a view to making a recommendation to Council as part of the 
budget setting process.

Members had the constitutional right to consider what recommendation 
they wished to make to Council in relation to the allocation of budget for 
supporting scrutiny reviews in 2009/10.  Members also had the option to 
review the sum allocated for spend on each agreed review.  It was 
reported that this amount was currently £250 and suggested that Members 
may wish to consider revising the sum initially awarded for reviews, by 
increasing it to £500. 

RECOMMENDED: (i) That the budget for supporting scrutiny reviews 
in 2009/10 be £20k, subject to the outcome of 
the working group considering the new scrutiny 
structure.1

REASON: To enable a robust scrutiny review support budget to 
be set for the 2009/10 financial year. 

Action Required  
1 - To make arrangements to forward the recommendation 
to Budget Council.   

GR  

Councillor J Galvin, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 6.05 pm]. 

Page 6



 

 

  

 

   

 

Scrutiny Management Committee 23rd February 2009 

 
Report of the Head of Civic, Legal, Democratic Services 

 

Update on Implementation of Recommendations of Previous 
Scrutiny Reviews 

Summary 

1. This report provides Members with update information on the implementation 
of recommendations made as a result of previously completed scrutiny reviews 
on Recycling and Reuse and City Centre Retailing. 

 Background 

2. At a previous meeting of Scrutiny Management Committee, Members 
requested an update on the implementation of the recommendations made as 
a result of all completed scrutiny reviews since 2004, which were subsequently 
approved by the Executive.  Many have been presented and those where 
implementation has been completed have been signed off.  

Consultation  

3. Relevant officers have provided update information on the recommendations 
arising from the reviews and will be in attendance at the meeting to answer any 
questions. 

Analysis 
 

4. The review on Recycling and Reuse was completed in September 2006. 
Members of SMC have signed off many of the recommendations already and 
this report presents updated information on those that are still outstanding. The 
update on the implementation of the recommendations is provided at Annex A 
to this report. 

5. The review of City Centre Retailing was completed in June 2004. Members of 
SMC have signed off many of the recommendations already and this report 
presents updated information on those that are still outstanding. The update on 
the implementation of the recommendations is provided at Annex B to this 
report. 

Options  

6. With regard to Annexes A and B, Members may choose to: 

Agenda Item 4Page 7



 

a. Sign off those recommendations where implementation has been 
completed, or 

 
b. Request further updates to clarify any outstanding recommendations 

Corporate Strategy 

7. The process of monitoring the implementation of approved recommendations 
will evidence our stated value to ‘encourage improvement in everything we do’. 

 Implications 

8. There are no known Financial, Human Resources, Equalities, Legal, ITT or 
other implications associated with the recommendations in this report.   

Risk Management 
 
9. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, there are no 

known risks associated with this report. 

 Recommendations 

10. Members are asked to note the contents of this report and agree which 
recommendations arising from previously completed scrutiny reviews can be 
signed off. 

Reason:  To raise awareness of those recommendations which have still to be 
implemented.  

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Quentin Baker 
Head of Civic, Legal and Democratic Services 
01904 551030 
 

Tracy Wallis 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
01904 551714 
 Report Approved � Date 09.02.2009 

Wards Affected:  All � 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A – Update on Recycling and Reuse Review 
Annex B – Update on City Centre Retailing Review 

Page 8



Annex A

Board and Topic Rec 

No.

Recommendations as approved by the Executive 

on 17 February 2006

Update on Recommendations as 

as November 2007

Update on Recommendations as of 

February 2009

2 That the City of York Council should consider the roll 

out recycling in Terraced Streets adopting the following 

good practice : 

i.   Use slimmer recycling boxes with a smaller footprint 

for such areas to reduce impeding pedestrian use of  

pavements       Officers to prepare a report for the next 

meeting of the Executive detailing the communication 

strategy for the Winter collection System and 

examining ways in which this can be done to reduce 

costs which can in turn be invested into the recycling 

service.ii.  Ensure that changes to such services are 

communicated   better to disabled people well in 

advance of the change and that this could be facilitated 

by using relevant advisory groups    Officers to work 

with Equalities Officer to devise test schemes for box 

collection schemes in the City 

3 That the City of York Council be recommended to 

consider paying Re-use Credits. That prior to the 

introduction of a scheme, Waste Strategy Officers at 

the City of York Council prepare a report for Member 

approval detailing;  

�         Best practice schemes already running at other 

Local Authorities including information about the 

effectiveness of the North Yorkshire County Council 

scheme

�         The terms of an appropriate scheme 

�         The likely cost impact of credits upon the 

authority

4  That the City of York Council be recommended to 

consider paying Re-use Credits for the Bike Rescue 

Project.    Officers to develop ways for improved 

working with the Bicycle Recovery Project at the 

Household Waste Recycling Centres.

This is on-going

Board and Topic Rec 

No.

Recommendations as approved by the Executive 

on 17 February 2006

Update on Recommendations as 

as November 2007

Budget approved for 2008/09 for the

trial to start in the second half of the

year. Work commenced 1st October

2008. Six streets with terraced

properties, flats and businesses are now

part of the trial. First results expected

by March 09.  

Re-use options reviewed again in

November 2008. Audit difficulties still

proving costly to administer. York

Furniture Re-use store, Bike rescue etc

being supported in other ways.

Services at 'bring banks' have been

expanded to incorporate re-use items

for a number of charities.

Commercial 

Services Scrutiny 

Board - Recycling & 

Re-use (Review 

Completed 

September 2006)

Executive agreed 9/10/07 to begin

trials in terraced areas. Various

types of containers are to be tested

during this trial. Equality issues will

be addressed.

Re-use credits have been reviewed 

and considered too complicated to 

implement.  There are issues that 

following re-use the product still has 

to be disposed of.

P
a
g
e
 9



Annex A

Commercial 

Services Scrutiny 

Board - Recycling & 

Re-use (Review 

Completed 

September 2006)

5  That further cross corporate work be done with the  

project managers and officers in Education, Youth 

Offending, Equalities and Sustainability and to ensure  

benefit from potential funding opportunities   The 

recycling team to continue to co-ordinate applications 

for funding which can be utilised corporately from 

external sources

Work continues with these officers. Work continues with these officers.

Report presented to Neighbourhood 

Services EMAP October 08 with full 

explanation.

recommendation 3, requested an explanation as to why a re-use credits system was considered too complicated to 

implement.  Re recommendation 4,  the payment of re-use credits for the Bike Rescue Project should be reconsidered 

and  information on how the Bicycle Recovery Project was being monitored was requested  Re Recommendation 5, 

further details of the ongoing work referred to in the update was requested.

P
a

g
e
 1

0



Annex B

Board and 

Topic

Rec 

No.

Recommendations as 

approved by the 

Executive on 26 Oct 

2004

Update on 

Implementation 

of 

Recommendati

ons as at July 

2007

Update on Implementation of Recommendations as at February 2009

a)  That the need to raise 

awareness about the 

location of York’s key 

information points is 

acknowledged.

We are now at 

the advance 

stage of 

completing the 

City Centre Map 

Panels with 

updated 

information.  

Investment in 

both the Station 

and the De Grey 

Rooms Visitor 

Information 

Centres has 

improved 

customer service 

and satisfaction.

Updated City Centre Map Panels are in place at the National Railway Museum, Marygate, Exhibition Square, Museum Street, Esplanade Car Park, College Green, 

King's Square, Pavement and the Eye of York.  There are also interactive information screens providing transport information, local news, maps and e-mail/internet 

access at Front Street in Acomb, Rougier Street, the Railway Station (x2), and Rawcliffe Park and Ride site.  In addition the new Visitor Information Centre, managed 

by Visit York, is scheduled to open in May of this year, providing improved access to services and particularly for people with mobility disabilities.  In addition to the 

existing service level, there will be;- a specific zone for accommodation, including the ‘book a bed ahead scheme’

·         a specific zone for tickets and events: the VIC will be a Ticketmaster agent

·         a specific travel zone – local, regional and national info both in and out of the city

·         itinerary planning – AV screens and terminals - and extensive digital signage and promotion to give a very modern feel

·         an improved retail offer – a larger range of local (York and Yorkshire) produce, including a refrigerated display cabinet for local/regional food produce

·         exhibition and sponsorship opportunities                                                                            

 The city's existing fingerpost scheme will be examined as part of the Public Realm Masterplan as part of the CCAAP 

 

Car park maps (produced by Cityscape and sold via dispensers) have recently been updated (2009)

b)  That efforts to 

address this issue are 

supported.

15

See above.

Economic 

Development 

and Community 

Safety Board: 

City Centre 

Retailing 

(Review 

Completed June 

2004)

The implementation of these recommendation 15  is not complete therefore it cannot be signed off.  A further update to be provided via email

Comment from Scrutiny Management Committee as of 23 July 2007:

P
a
g
e
 1

1



P
a

g
e
 1

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

  

 

   

 

Scrutiny Management Committee 23rd February 2009 

 
Report of the Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal Services 

 

Update on the Work of Health Scrutiny Committee 

Summary 

1. This report presents a summary of the work undertaken by Health Scrutiny 
Committee since November 2008. 

 Background 

2. The Health Scrutiny Committee was formed in May 2006 to carry out the 
statutory health scrutiny function, which was previously under the remit of the 
Social Services and Health Scrutiny Board.   

Consultation  

3. Since November 2008 the Committee have been working on the following 
topics: 

Local Involvement Networks (LINKs) 

4. LINks are the independent, formally constituted bodies that have now replaced 
the Patient and Public Involvement Forums previously attached to all NHS 
Trusts. LINks differ from previous systems as they are based on broad 
networks rather than on small specialist groups, involving representatives from 
organisations as well as individuals, and addressing issues across health and 
social care rather than focussing on individual organisations or services. 

5. Since the last update to SMC governance arrangements for the LINk have 
been identified and agreed. Protocols covering complaints, membership, 
standards of conduct and expenses have also been established. Work is 
currently being undertaken on profiling of the local community, its health needs 
and current service provision. Work has been undertaken to look at how the 
LINk will complement existing networks and partnerships and identify hard to 
reach groups. 

6. As it begins to build its own work plan, consultation between the LINk, the 
Health Scrutiny Committee and other strategic partnerships in the city is key. 
Following on from the LINks workshop in November 2008, representatives of 
the Health Scrutiny Committee, City of York Council, LINk and Healthy City 
Board met in January 2009 to discuss these matters further. It was agreed that 

Agenda Item 5Page 13



the guidelines for each constituent player were not yet completely clear and 
that further joint work planning was necessary. 

7. Feasibility studies are presently conducted to gather information on newly 
registered scrutiny topics. This study is then presented to the Health Scrutiny 
Committee to enable them to make an informed decision on whether a scrutiny 
review should go ahead or not. In the immediate future it was suggested that 
the LINk could act as a consultee, and feed information into the feasibility 
studies via the Scrutiny Officer. Negotiations regarding the possibility of 
implementing this are still ongoing. 

8. The LINk is due to have its Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 26th March 2009 
when a formal steering group will be established. 

Annual Health Check 

9. The Annual Health Check is the system that the Healthcare Commission used 
to assess the performance of various NHS Trusts. In York this relates to the 
York Hospitals Foundation Trust, The Yorkshire Ambulance Service and North 
Yorkshire and York Primary Care Trust. For the first time the Annual Health 
Check will separately assess Primary Care Trusts in their roles as 
commissioners and providers of services. 

10. Members of the Health Scrutiny Committee have agreed to submit 
commentaries on the three Trusts’ declarations and this will be done in liaison 
with all the relevant Trusts in time for the submission deadline of 30th April 
2009. 

Quarterly Updates on Dental Provision 

11. The Health Scrutiny Committee has a keen interest in dental provision within 
the York area. Following on from previous discussions with NYYPCT the 
Committee has now received its first update on the new style reporting 
template. There was still work to be done regarding how the information should 
be presented, especially in terms of illustrating trends and the geographical 
split of the information. Members have requested that the NYYPCT report back 
to the Committee on a quarterly basis. 

Dementia Review 

12. This has now been signed off by all the appropriate bodies and the Scrutiny 
Officer will shortly be circulating the report to all parties involved as well as 
those bodies suggested by SMC and the Executive. 

Feasibility Studies 

13. Since the last report back to SMC the Health Scrutiny Committee have 
received three feasibility reports on newly registered scrutiny topics. The 
Committee decided not to go ahead with these for the following reasons: 

 

Page 14



Outreach Workers 

14. This topic was registered by Councillor James Alexander and concerned the 
scrutiny of the availability, funding and uniform distribution of access to 
outreach workers. The Committee decided not to proceed with the review at 
the present time but asked the Director of Housing and Adult Social Services to 
provide an update report at a later date detailing the outcome of discussions 
with stakeholders, representative agencies and providers about the 
commissioning of services and partnership working. On receipt of this report 
the Committee would then look at whether it was feasible to proceed with the 
topic. 

Access to Dental Services 

15. This topic was registered by Councillor Richard Moore and concerned access 
to dental services in York. The Committee decided to defer this topic until a 
further quarterly update on dental provision had been received from NYYPCT. 
At the meeting where this topic was discussed it came to light that the LINk 
may also put this on their work plan and in order not to duplicate work it was 
decided to wait until after their AGM in March 2009. Representatives of 
NYYPCT also informed the Committee that North Yorkshire County Council 
might well undertake some work in this area in summer 2009. Possibilities of 
running a joint scrutiny review would need to be explored. Some information on 
the system of ‘Units of Dental Activity’ was also requested, especially in 
relation to how Doncaster PCT implemented this. 

Alcohol Reduction Strategy 

16. This topic was registered by Councillor Susan Galloway and concerned the 
performance and value for money of the NYYPCT’s alcohol treatment services, 
particularly in relation to the hospital admissions. After due consideration of all 
the evidence before them Members decided to request a briefing note from 
NYYPCT providing further information before making a decision on whether to 
proceed with this topic or not. 

Other 

17. Outside and informal events are a large part of Health Scrutiny. Various 
Members of the Committee and the Scrutiny Officer attend related external 
events wherever possible. The Committee now receive a quarterly information 
report outlining these. Events attended since the last report to SMC include a 
Members visit to York Hospital, a Scrutinising Health Inequalities Event and a 
half-day training on the Darzi Report. 

General Work Planning 

18. The Health Scrutiny Committee has an ongoing work plan, which is attached, 
at Annex A to this report. This is a fluid, working document and constantly 
changes to reflect the upcoming issues to be determined at future Committee 
meetings. 

Page 15



Options  

19. This report is for information only.  

Analysis 
 

20. This report is for information only 

Corporate Values 

21. This report is relevant to the following Corporate Value: 

‘Encouraging improvement in everything we do’ 
 

Implications 

22. There are no known Financial, HR, Equalities, Legal, Crime & Disorder, IT or 
other implications associated with this report. 

Risk Management 

23. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, there are no risks 
associated with the recommendations in this report. 

Recommendations 

24. Members are asked to note the report. 

Reason: To inform Scrutiny Management Committee of the work and progress 
of the Health Scrutiny Committee. 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Quentin Baker 
Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal Services 
01904 551004 

Tracy Wallis 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
01904 551714 Report Approved � Date 09.02.2009 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
None 

Wards Affected:   All � 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers: 
None          
 
Annexes 
Annex A – Copy of the Current Work Plan for the Health Scrutiny Committee   

Page 16



Health Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2008/09        Annex A 

 
 
Work Area Tasks Timeframe Responsible Officer 
LINks • Participate in training and events in connection with the development of 

the LINk in conjunction with Host (North Bank Forum) 
• Receive regular updates from Trusts 
• Report back with a detailed working relationship between LINks, NBF & 

the Health Scrutiny Committee 

Ongoing 
 
 
Ongoing 
September 
2009 

Nigel Burchell / 
Scrutiny Officer (as 
appropriate) 

Dental Provision In 
York 

• Receive regular update from NYYPCT May 2009 Scrutiny Officer 
together with 
appropriate persons 
from the PCT. 

Annual 
Healthcheck 

• Further update on the Annual Health Check & preparation of the draft 
commentaries to submit to the various Trusts 

March 2009 Scrutiny Officer in 
conjunction with the 
three Trusts 

Dementia Review 
Recommendation 
Tracking 

• To receive an update from the PCT, York Hospital & Ambulance Trust 
regarding the implementation of the Scrutiny Review recommendations. 

July 2009 Scrutiny Officer in 
conjunction with the 
three Trusts 

General • Health Scrutiny Networking Update May 2009 Scrutiny Officer 
Outreach Workers 
(Proposed Scrutiny 
Topic) 

To receive an update report detailing the outcome of discussions with 
stakeholders, representative agencies and providers about the 
commissioning of services and partnership working to provide these 
services; in order to ascertain whether a more broadly focused scrutiny 
review should be undertaken on this matter in the future. 

TBC Director of Housing 
and Adult Social 
Services 

Alcohol Reduction 
Strategy (Proposed 
Scrutiny Topic) 

A joint briefing paper be prepared by the Primary Care Trust and the 
Hospital to include: 

 

• Clarification as to the data that is currently collected 

• Confirmation of targets and how these are reported (including 
the definition of an alcohol related hospital admission) 

• Historical data  

• Feedback from the pilot being carried out by Harrogate 

TBC NYYPCT/Safer York 
Partnership/Scrutiny 
Officer 

 
P

a
g
e
 1

7



Health Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2008/09        Annex A 

Accident and Emergency Department in respect of the 
electronic collection of data. 

Access to Dental 
Services 
(Proposed Scrutiny 
Topic) 

That a briefing note be prepared regarding the arrangements that 
Doncaster PCT has put in place in respect of UDAs. 

TBC  

Feasibility Reports • To prepare feasibility reports for new topics submitted for review As and when 
required 

Scrutiny Officer 

 

P
a

g
e
 1

8



 

 

  

 

   

 

 Scrutiny Management Committee 23 February 2009 

 Report of the Scrutiny Manager 

 

Annual Scrutiny Report 

Summary 

1. This report presents the annual scrutiny report from scrutiny services detailing 
all of the reviews completed between May 2006 – Dec 2008.  

 Background 

2. This committee is charged with monitoring overall performance in relation to 
scrutiny review work and providing an annual report to Full Council.  The last 
annual report was produced in April 2006, and this was followed by a number 
of changes to the scrutiny function in York.  The most significant change saw 
the disbanding of the scrutiny boards which aligned the Executive Member 
portfolios and their replacement with the current scrutiny structure of two 
standing scrutiny committees and the use of ad-hoc scrutiny committees for 
time limited reviews. 

3. During the period May 2006 and April 2008, a decision was taken not to 
produce any Annual reports due to the limited number of completed reviews. 

Consultation  

4. No consultation was required for the production of the annual report attached 
at Annex A, but consultation was carried out with all the relevant parties as part 
of each of the completed reviews documented within the annual report. 

Options  

5. Members having considered the Annual Report at Annex A, may choose to:  
 

• approve the report for presentation to the next meeting of Full Council 
• agree any amendments required to the report prior to its presentation to 

Full Council 
 

Analysis 
 

6. The report provides readers with an understanding of the overview and 
scrutiny function and explains how each of the completed reviews related to 
the corporate strategy, and which of the improvement priorities they supported. 

Agenda Item 6Page 19



 

7. The report also outlines the forthcoming changes to the scrutiny function in 
York and provides information on the new scrutiny committees which are to be 
formed as a result of the planned changes to the decision making structure i.e. 
the removal of EMAPs. 

 

Corporate Priorities 

8. The production of an annual Scrutiny Report supports the following direction 
statement of the Council -  ‘We will promote cohesive and inclusive 
communities’.  Within the report, there is information on how each of the 
completed reviews supported the council’s improvement priorities and direction 
statements. 

 Implications 

9. There are no known Legal, HR and financial implication associated with the 
recommendation within this report 

Risk Management 
 

10. There are no known risks associated with the recommendation in this report. 
 

 Recommendations 

11. Having considered the information within this covering report and Annex A, 
Members are asked to approve the Annual Scrutiny Report which covers the 
period between May 2006 and December 2008 

Reason: To enable its presentation to Full Council, in line with the 
constitutional requirements. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Dawn Steel 
Scrutiny Manager 

Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No. 01904 552063 Report Approved ���� Date 13 February 2009 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  - None 
 

Wards Affected:   All ���� 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers:  Final Reports for each of the completed reviews shown listed 
within the annual Report at Annex A 
 

Annexes 
 
Annex A – Annual Scrutiny Report (May 2006 – December 2008) 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



 

 

  

 

   

 

Scrutiny Management Committee 23rd February 2009 

 
Report of the Head of Civic, Legal & Democratic Services 

 

Protocol for Joint Scrutiny Reviews 

Summary 

1. The purpose of this report is to present Members with a revised protocol to 
enable York to host joint scrutiny reviews should the need arise. A draft of the 
protocol is attached at Annex A to this report. 

 Background 

2. A draft protocol was presented to Members at Scrutiny Management 
Committee on 17th November 2008. Members agreed to adopt the protocol on 
the proviso that minor alterations regarding the following be added to the 
protocol: 

a. How proportionality would be achieved for the City of York Council 
membership; 

b. How the arrangements would apply if more than two authorities were 
involved. 

3. Members requested that the report be presented to them again once these 
alterations had been made. 

Summary of Amendments 

4. Joint committees will be composed of Councillors drawn from local authorities 
in the following terms (these are set out in paragraph 3.2 of the protocol): 

i. Where 9 or more local authorities participate in a joint scrutiny committee  - 
The Chair (or Chair’s representative) of each participating authority’s relevant 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee will become a Member. 

ii. Where 4 to 8 local authorities participate – then each participating authority 
will nominate 2 Councillors from their relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. [In York, under the current Council composition this would entitle 
the 2 largest groups to nominate 1 Member each] 

iii. Where 3 local authorities participate then each participating authority will 
nominate 4 Councillors from their relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

Agenda Item 7Page 37



 

[In York, under the current Council composition this would entitle the 2 largest 
groups to nominate 1 Member each] 

iv. Where 2 local authorities participate then the Host authority will nominate 4 
Councillors from their relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the other 
authority will nominate 3 Councillors from their relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. [In York, under the current Council composition this would entitle 
the 2 largest groups to nominate 1 Member each]1 

Consultation  

5. Consultation would take place with the relevant local authority(s) at the time a 
potential review topic was proposed.  North Yorkshire County Council is 
currently being consulted in relation to both this protocol and a scrutiny topic 
submitted by Councillor D’Agorne. 

6. To date the draft protocol has not been seen by other local authorities; so 
should the need arise for a joint scrutiny review to take place then all 
participating authorities would need to agree to this protocol being used. 

Options  

7. Members have the following option: 

Adopt the amended protocol for joint scrutiny reviews with or without further 
amendment. 

 

Analysis 
 

8. As detailed in paragraph 3.1 of the protocol each participating local authority 
should ensure that the Councillors it nominates reflects its own political 
balance. However any local authority can decide to waive its political balance 
requirements in order to reflect more appropriate representation. 

9. Paragraph 4 of this report details the amendments that Scrutiny Management 
Committee requested at a previous meeting. By agreeing these amendments 
City of York Council would be in a position to host joint scrutiny reviews with 
any number of other local authorities should the need arise. 

Corporate Strategy 2007-2011 

10. The proposals in this report relate to the two Direction Statements: 

• We want services to be provided by whoever can best meet the needs of our 
customers. 

• We will be an outward looking Council, working across boundaries for the 
people of York. 

                                            
1
 In relation to (ii), (iii) & (iv) of paragraph 4 of this report – unless strict proportionality is waived in 

compliance with paragraph 3.1 of the Protocol. 

Page 38



 

 Implications 

11. Financial – There are no direct financial implications from this report. Any 
administrative costs arising from the joint scrutiny work would be either met by 
the host organisation or, if more substantial, be shared between those 
authorities that are working on any particular investigation. Arrangements and 
terms of reference would need to be agreed between relevant authorities if a 
joint review took place. 

12. Human Resources (HR)  - There are no known Human Resources 
implications associated with this report. However, in York leading and hosting a 
joint review under the protocol, scrutiny administrative support would need to 
be identified. 

13. Legal – Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 gives Overview & 
Scrutiny bodies the powers to establish joint committees with other local 
authorities to undertake scrutiny functions. 

14. Constitutionally Scrutiny Management Committee has the power to establish 
joint committees with other local authorities/public bodies to undertake scrutiny 
reviews and to exercise the scrutiny function. They also have the authority to 
delegate functions of overview and scrutiny of cross-boundary topics to other 
local authorities. 

15. Under the new scrutiny arrangements (taking effect after Annual Council 
meeting in May 2009), provision has been made for joint scrutiny task groups 
to be established. Arrangements contained within the attached protocol for 
hosting such reviews would be equally available under the new scrutiny 
system. 

16. There are no known equalities, crime & disorder, information technology or 
property implications associated with the recommendations in this report. 

Risk Management 
 

17. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy there are no known 
risks associated with the recommendations in this report. 

Recommendations 

18. Members are asked to agree to the revisions to the protocol as set out in 
Annex A to this report. 

REASON: To ensure Members can fully take part in scrutiny work that may 
impact on more than one geographical area. 

Page 39



 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Quentin Baker 
Head of Civic, Legal & Democratic Services 
01904 551004 
 

Tracy Wallis 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
01904 551714 

Report Approved � Date 09.02.09 

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s 
 
Legal 
Quentin Baker 
Head of Civic, Legal & Democratic Services 
01904 551004 
 

All � Wards Affected:  

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers: 
 

None          
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A – Joint protocol for scrutiny reviews.   

Page 40



Annex A 

DRAFT 

 

  

PROTOCOL FOR HOSTING JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
  
 
1.0 PRINCIPLES FOR JOINT SCRUTINY 
 
1.1 The basis of joint scrutiny will be co-operation and partnership 
 with a mutual understanding of the following aims: 
 

• To improve the visibility of overview and scrutiny regionally 
 

• To work together on shared interests and to share resources and 
experiences where appropriate 

 
1.2 The Local Authorities will be willing to share knowledge, respond to 

requests for information and carry out their duties in an atmosphere of 
courtesy and respect in accordance with their Codes of Conduct.  
Personal and prejudicial interests will be declared in all cases, in 
accordance with the Code of Conduct. 

 
1.3 The scrutiny process will be open and transparent in accordance with 

the Local Government Act 1972 and the Freedom of Information Act 
2000 and meetings will be held in public (subject to the expressed 
wishes of any jointly established Committees in specially convened 
informal session). Only information that is expressly defined in 
regulations to be confidential or exempt from publication will be 
considered in private. 

 
1.4 Different approaches to scrutiny reviews may be taken in each case.  A 

Joint Committee will seek to act as inclusively as possible and will take 
evidence from a wide range of opinion. Attempts will be made to 
ascertain the views of hard to reach groups, young people and the 
general public.  

 
2.0 DELEGATED SCRUTINY 
 
2.1 Regulations enable a local authority to arrange for its overview and 

scrutiny functions to be undertaken by a committee from another local 
authority.  Delegation may occur where a local authority believes that 
another may be better placed to consider a particular local priority and, 
importantly, the latter agrees to exercise that function.   
 

 Delegated Powers 
 
2.2 When and where such delegation takes place, the full powers of 

overview and scrutiny shall be given to the delegated  committee, but 
only in relation to the specific delegated function (i.e. a specific review). 

 
 
 

Page 41



Annex A 

DRAFT 

 

  

 Terms of Reference 
 
2.3 In such circumstances, clear terms of reference, clarity about the scope 

and methods of scrutiny to be used must be determined between the 
affected local authorities.  Formal terms of reference should be drafted 
and formally agreed by the respective Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees of the affected local authorities. 

 
2.4 The Host authority (the authority undertaking the review exercise) will 

be responsible for conducting scrutiny in accordance with its own set 
procedures and will be expected to regularly communicate with the 
delegating authority (ies). 

 
3.0 JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 
 Membership of a Joint Scrutiny Committee 
 
3.1 Under the Local Government Act 2000 provisions, Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees must generally reflect the make up of full Council.   
Consequently, when establishing a Joint Scrutiny Committee, each 
participating  local authority should ensure that those Councillors it 
nominates reflects its own political balance.  However any Local 
Authority can decide to waive its political balance requirements in order 
to reflect more appropriate representation. 

 
3.2 In accordance with the above, Joint Committees will be composed of 
 Councillors drawn from local authorities in the following terms: - 

  

• Where 9 or more local authorities participate in a Joint Scrutiny 
Committee – The Chair (or Chair’s representative) of each 
participating authority’s relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
will become a Member. 

• Where 4 to 8 local authorities participate – then each participating 
authority will nominate 2 Councillors from their relevant Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee. 

• Where 3 local authorities participate then each participating 
authority will nominate 4 Councillors from their relevant Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee. 

• Where two local authorities participate then the Host authority will 
nominate 4 Councillors from their relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and the other authority 3 Councillors from their relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3.3 Each local authority should make a decision as to whether it should 

seek approval from its respective full Council or other appropriate body 
to delegate authority to its relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(or another appropriate body) to nominate Councillors on a proportional 
basis to a Joint Scrutiny Committee. 

Page 42



Annex A 

DRAFT 

 

  

3.4 From time to time and where appropriate, the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
may appoint non-voting co-optees for the duration of a review.  

 
Lead Authority and Chair 
 
3.5 Where a Joint Scrutiny Committee considers a review topic, the 

delegated (Host) authority would take the lead in terms of organising 
and Chairing the joint committee. 

 
3.6 Selection of a Host authority, should where possible, be chosen by 
 mutual agreement by the local authorities involved and take into 
 account both capacity to service a Joint Scrutiny Committee and 
 available resources.  Additionally, the following criteria should guide  
 determination of the Host Authority: 
 

• The local authority within whose area local communities will be 
most affected; or if that is evenly spread; 

 

• The local authority within whose area the service being affected is 
predominantly based 

 
 Operating Procedures 
 
3.7 Any Joint Committee will conduct its business in accordance with the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules of the Lead 
Authority. 

 
3.8 In hosting, this Authority will service and administer the scrutiny 

exercise and liaise with the other affected local authorities. 
 
3.9 In hosting, this Authority will draw up a draft terms of reference and 

timetable for the scrutiny exercise, for approval by the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee at its first meeting.  In hosting, this Authority will also have 
responsibility for arranging meetings, co-ordinating papers in respect of 
its agenda and drafting the final report. 

 
 Meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
 
3.10 At the first meeting of any new inquiry, the Joint Scrutiny 
 Committee will determine: 

 

• Terms of reference of the inquiry; 

• Number of sessions required; 

• Timetable of meetings & venue. 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Annex A 

DRAFT 

 

  

 Reports of the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
 
3.11 At the conclusion of an Inquiry the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall 

produce a written report and recommendations, which shall include: 
 

• an explanation of the matter reviewed or scrutinised 

• a summary of the evidence considered 

• a list of the participants involved in the review or scrutiny; and 

• any recommendations on the matter reviewed or scrutinised. 
 
3.12 Reports shall be agreed by a majority of members of the Joint 
 Scrutiny Committee. 
 
3.13 Reports shall be sent to all relevant local authorities, along with any 

other  bodies determined by the Joint Scrutiny Committee and Host 
Authority. 

 
 Minority reports 
 
3.14 Where a member of a Joint Scrutiny Committee does not agree 
 with the content of the Committee‘s report, they may produce a report 
 setting out their findings and recommendations and such a report will 
 form an Appendix to the Joint Scrutiny Committee‘s report. 
 
 

Page 44


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Update on the Implementation of Recommendations of Previous Scrutiny Reviews
	Recommendations Update Annex A - Recycling  Reuse
	Recommendations Update Annex B - City Centre Retailing Review

	5 Update on the Work of Health Scrutiny Committee
	Work plan 2008 onwards (current version)

	6 Scrutiny Annual Report
	Annual Report Annex A

	7 Protocol for Joint Scrutiny Reviews
	Protocol for Joint Scrutiny Committees Annex A


